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National Highways Planning Response (NHPR 21-09)
Formal Recommendation to an Application for Planning Permission

From: Nicola Bell (Regional Director)
Operations Directorate
South East Region
National Highways
planningse @highwaysengland.co.uk

To: Adur & Worthing Councils - FAO Gary Peck
Planning@adur-worthing.gov.uk
Gary.Peck@adur-worthing.gov.uk

CC: transportplanning@dft.qgov.uk
spatialplanning@highwaysengland.co.uk

Council's Reference: AWDM/1264/20
Appeal Reference: AWAP/0035/21
Location: Land North-west of Goring Station, Goring Street, Worthing, BN12 5BT

Proposal: Mixed use development comprising up to 475 dwellings along with
associated access, internal roads and footpaths, car parking, public open space,
landscaping, local centre (uses including Al, A2, A3, A4, A5, D1, D2, as proposed to
be amended to use classes E, F and Sui Generis) with associated car parking, car
parking for the adjacent railway station, undergrounding of overhead HV cables and
other supporting infrastructure and utilities (Outline with all matters reserved).

National Highways Ref: 90124/ #15494

Referring to the consultation on a planning application dated 22 December 2020
referenced above, in the vicinity of the A27 that forms part of the Strategic Road
Network, notice is hereby given that National Highways’ formal recommendation is
that we:

)\ off biection { Y
b) recommend that conditions should be attached to any planning

permission that may be granted (see Annex A — National Highways
recommended Planning Conditions & reasons);
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Highways Act 1980 Section 175B is/is-net relevant to this application.!

This represents National Highways formal recommendation (prepared by the Area 4
Spatial Planning Team) and is made available to the Department for Transport as per
the terms of our Licence.

Should the Local Planning Authority not propose to determine the application in
accordance with this recommendation they are required to consult the Secretary of
State for Transport, as set out in the Town and Country Planning (Development
Affecting Trunk Roads) Direction 2018, via transportplanning@dft.gov.uk and may not
determine the application until the consultation process is complete.

The Local Planning authority must also copy any consultation under the 2018 Direction
to planningse@highwaysengland.co.uk .

Signature: 7 C/-_.\_ - Date: 16 December 2021
Name: Elizabeth Cleaver Position: Assistant Spatial Planning
Manager

National Highways
Bridge House

1 Walnut Tree Close
Guildford

GUl 4Lz

1 Where relevant, further information will be provided within Annex A.
2 As announced on 19 August 2021 Highways England became National Highways; although our roles and responsibilities remain
largely unchanged and our branding will transition over a period of time.
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Annex A National Highway’s assessment of the proposed development

National Highways has been appointed by the Secretary of State for Transport as a
strategic highway company under the provisions of the Infrastructure Act 2015 and is
the highway authority, traffic authority and street authority for the Strategic Road
Network (SRN). The SRN is a critical national asset and as such we work to ensure
that it operates and is managed in the public interest, both in respect of current
activities and needs as well as in providing effective stewardship of its long-term
operation and integrity.

This response represents our formal recommendations with regard the above
referenced planning application and has been prepared by the National Highways
South East Region Area 4 Spatial Planning Team.

We require the following conditions to be attached to any consent that the Planning
Authority/Inspectorate is minded granting in respect of Application no. AWDM/1264/20
(Appeal Reference: AWAP/0035/21:

1. Prior to first occupation of the development hereby permitted, the improvement
works at the A280/A27/Titnore Lane Roundabout shall be completed and open to
the travelling public as shown on i-Transport’s drawing number “/TB9105-GA-024
— Proposed Improvement Scheme to A280/A27/Titnore Lane Roundabout” (or other
such scheme of works substantially to the same effect, as may be approved in
writing by the local planning authority (who shall consult with National Highways)),
including any necessary transfer of lands to enable the construction and
maintenance of the scheme.

Reason: The modifications have been proposed to provide sufficient capacity at
the A280/A27/Titnore Lane Junction. This is to ensure the A27 Trunk Road
continues to be an effective part of the national system of routes for through traffic
in accordance with section 10 of the Highways Act 1980 and to satisfy the
reasonable requirements of road safety.

2. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied until completion of
the highway improvement works as shown on SYSTRA’s drawing number
“103800_D011 REV.A — A27/The Causeway (Arundel) Minor Works on A27 (EB
and WB)” (or other such scheme of works substantially to the same effect, as may
be approved in writing by the local planning authority (who shall consult with
National Highways)), including any necessary transfer of lands to enable the
construction and maintenance of the scheme.

Reason: To ensure that the A27 continues to be an effective part of the national

system of routes for through traffic in accordance with section 10 of the Highways
Act 1980 and to satisfy the reasonable requirements of road safety.
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3. No works shall commence on the site hereby permitted (including site clearance or
preparation) until the details of a Construction Management Plan have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority (who shall
consult with National Highways). Thereafter the construction of the development
shall proceed in strict accordance with the approved Construction Management
Plan unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority (who shall
consult National Highways).

Reason: To ensure that the A27 Trunk Road continues to be an effective part of
the national system of routes for through traffic in accordance with section 10 of the
Highways Act 1980 and to satisfy the reasonable requirements of road safety.

Informative applicable to recommended conditions 1 and 2

The Highways Act 1980 (as inserted via the Infrastructure Act 2015) requires those
proposing works affecting the public highway to enter into an agreement with the
Strategic Highway Authority (National Highways).

This development involves work to the public highway that can only be undertaken
within the scope of a legal agreement between the applicant and Highways England.
Planning permission in itself does not permit these works.

It is the applicant’s responsibility to ensure that before commencement of any works
to the public highway, any necessary agreements under the Highways Act 1980 are
also obtained. Advice on this matter can be obtained from the Spatial Planning Team,
National Highways, Bridge House, 1 Walnut Tree Close, Guildford, Surrey GU1 4LZ.
Email planningse @highwaysengland.co.uk.

Informative applicable to recommended condition 3

The CMP shall include details (text, maps and drawings as appropriate) of the scale,
timing and mitigation of all construction related aspects of the development. It will
include, but is not limited to: site hours of operation; numbers, frequency, routing and
type of vehicles visiting the site; travel plan and guided access/egress and parking
arrangements for site workers, visitors and deliveries; and wheel washing and other
facilities to prevent dust, dirt, detritus etc. from entering the public highway (and means
to remove if it occurs).

This application has been assessed by the National Highways South East Region
Spatial Planning Team. This NHPR form represents National Highways’ formal
recommendation regarding the application. Itis copied to the Department for Transport
as per the terms of our Licence.
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